
1 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

Minutes of Meeting of Policy and Resources Committee of Mid Ulster District 
Council held on Thursday 3 April 2025 in the Council Offices, Ballyronan Road, 
Magherafelt and by Virtual Means 
 
Members Present  Councillor Quinn, Chair 
  

Councillor Brown, F Burton*, J Burton*, Cahoon, Corry, 
Gildernew*, Johnston, McAleer*, McConnell, McLean, 
McLernon*, S McPeake, Molloy*, Totten, Wilson 

 
Officers in  Mrs Canavan, Strategic Director of Organisational 
Attendance Development, Strategy & Performance (SD: ODSP) 
 Mrs Dyson, Head of Human Resources (HoHR)**  
 Mr McGuckin, Head of Strategic Services and 

Engagement (HoSS&E) 
 Mr Moffett, Assistant Director: Organisational  
 Development, Strategy & Performance (SD: ODSP) 
 Ms McNally, Assistant Director of Corporate Services & 

Finance (AD: CS&F) 
 Mr O’Hagan, Head of IT (HoIT) 
             Mrs Forde, Committee and Member Services Manager 
    Mr Scullion, AD: Property Services ** 
 
*   Denotes members present in remote attendance  
**  Denotes Officers present by remote means 
*** Denotes others present by remote means 
 
 
The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Quinn welcomed everyone to the meeting and those watching 
the meeting through the Live Broadcast. Councillor Quinn in introducing the meeting 
detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the business of the committee 
in the Chamber and by virtual means, by referring to Annex A to this minute. 
 
PR059/25 Notice of Recording 
 
Members noted that the meeting would be webcast for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s You Tube site. 
 
PR060/25 Apologies 
 
None 
 
PR061/25 Declarations of Interest 
 
The Chair, Councillor Quinn reminded Members of their responsibility with regard to 
declarations of interest. 
 



2 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

Councillors Gildernew and McLernon declared an interest in agenda item 15 
Employee Assistance and Cash Plan – Westfield Health – Increase in annual 
charges.  
 
PR062/25 Chairs Business 
 
Councillor Johnston outlined an issue in relation to Magherafelt Reds in block 
booking pitches at Meadowbank for a Saturday compared to the experience of 
Maghera Strollers who block book pitches in Maghera.   
 
The SD: Organisational Development Strategy and Performance said that the matter 
was one for Communities & Place Directorate and she would request the AD: Heath, 
Leisure and Wellbeing follow up with Councillor Johnston directly.  
 
The Chair, Councillor Quinn said he had been speaking with Rivers Agency during 
the week as without notice they had cut trees in Torrent area which impacted on 
pedestrian walkway on Council owned lands.  He said there had been no notification 
given for the works and he would propose to write to Rivers Agency to ensure 
notification is communicated to Council in future. 
 
 Proposed by Councillor Quinn 
 Seconded by Councillor J Burton and  
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to write to Rivers Agency and 

request that notification is given to Council when they are carrying out 
works that will impact the use of Council owned lands and walkways. 

 
Matters for Decision  
 
PR063/25 Draft Response on the NHSCT’s Consultation Piloting the use of 

Body-worn Camera Devices within the Emergency Department 
 
The Head of Strategic Services and Engagement presented previously circulated  
report which provided draft consultation response to Piloting the use of Body-worn 
Camera Devices within the Emergency Department. 
 
In response to Councillor McConnell’s enquiry the HoSSE advised that the pilot was 
across all areas. 
 
Councillor Gildernew said that staff in Accident & Emergency departments should be 
protected and if this helped she would support use of the body worn cameras.  
 
Councillor Johnston said whilst she could see the importance queried if it would 
impact the privacy of a patient.   
 
The Head of ICT said that the Health Board would carry out data impact 
assessments but the question could be asked.   
 
The HoSSE said he would be happy to include the comments in the response.   
 



3 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

Councillor Corry said the cameras would be used in emergency department not the 
consultation room.   
 
Councillor J Burton said clarity should be sought on the cost involved in provision of 
cameras as the health service was ‘on its knees’.   
 
Councillor Wilson said that the idea is to protect staff and as a safety measure the 
camera would only be switched on if staff are being attacked or abused thus if 
patients were not abusing staff there would be no issue.  He said that it was a health 
service issue but he would welcome body cameras if they would deter attacks on 
hardworking staff.  He concluded that the PSNI wear body cams.   
 
Councillor Gildernew said her daughter is a paramedic in Ireland and wears a body 
cam but it is only put on if they are under threat.  
 

Proposed by Councillor Brown 
Seconded by Councillor McConnell and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council, subject to the foregoing to approve 

the draft response to the Northern Trust’s consultation on the use of 
Body-worn Camera Devices within the Emergency Department as 
outlined at Appendix A of report. 

 
PR064/25 Committee and Council Meeting Schedule 2025/26 
 
The Head of Strategic Services and Engagement presented previously circulated 
report which considered the 2025-2026 Committee and Council Meeting Schedule 
for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor McLean    
Seconded by Councillor Corry and  

 
Resolved  That it be recommended to Council to approve the Council and 

Committee Meeting Schedule for the period June 2025 to May 2026. 
 
 
 
PR065/25 Request(s) to Illuminate Council Property 
 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought approval to illuminate 
and light up the Council’s three designated properties to raise awareness for the 
following: 
 

• Spires Parkinson’s UK Branch – World Parkinson’s Day: Date: 11 April 
2025 Colour: Blue 

• Nerve Tumours UK - Shine A Light on NF Awareness Campaign: Date 17 
May 2025 Colour: Blue 

• Hope 4 ME & Fibro NI – International ME Awareness Day Date: 12 May 
2025: Colour: Blue 

• Hope 4 ME & Fibro NI – Severe ME Awareness Day: Date: 8 August 2025 



4 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

Colour: Blue 

• Facial Pain Awareness – Trigeminal Neuralgia (TN) Awareness Day Date: 
7 October 2025 Colour: Teal or cyan 

 
Proposed by Councillor Brown  
Seconded by Councillor Johnston and  
 

Resolved That it be recommended to Council to illuminate the three designated 
Council properties as follows – 

• Spires Parkinson’s UK Branch – World Parkinson’s Day: Date: 11 
April 2025 Colour: Blue 

• Nerve Tumours UK - Shine A Light on NF Awareness Campaign: 
Date 17 May 2025 Colour: Blue 

• Hope 4 ME & Fibro NI – International ME Awareness Day Date: 12 
May 2025: Colour: Blue 

• Hope 4 ME & Fibro NI – Severe ME Awareness Day: Date: 8 August 
2025 Colour: Blue 

• Facial Pain Awareness – Trigeminal Neuralgia (TN) Awareness Day 
Date: 7 October 2025 Colour: Teal or cyan 

 

Councillor F Burton left the meeting 7.23pm 
 
 
PR066/25 Customer Service Policy 
 
The Assistant Director of Organisation Development, Strategy & Performance 
presented previously circulated report which considered the draft Customer Service 
Policy following a period of review across business teams to reflect legislative and 
other changes required.  He said that previously the policy included complaints 
handling.   
 
Councillor McConnell said whilst he welcomed the approach, he would acknowledge 
that the reception staff bare the brunt when customers do not reach the intended 
target.  He said that sometimes once transferred phones ring out and calls are not 
diverted within departments or back to switchboard.  
 
The AD: ODSP in response said that it was an area officers continued to work on to 
ensure calls are answered promptly.  He said there was a small team building 
standards, but he could appreciate the Members concern. 
 
Councillor McLean drew attention to 6.2.2 and said whilst the majority of staff are 
professional some do not take the same approach, and this can portray a bad 
imagine and undermines those doing the job well.  He said he was happy with the 
report it would be excellent to aspire to this and whilst he can appreciate someone 
can have an off day it is important that telephones are answered professionally.  
 
The SD: ODSP said that there is continuous training and endeavour to uphold 
standards but, on some occasions, it is difficult to get sufficient cover.  She said the 
service delivery was continuously being monitored that the Customer Service 



5 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

Manager post had been filled which would help.  It was also acknowledged that more 
services were going online.   
 
Councillor McLean concurred with comments and said there had been a vast 
improvement in the system but like every walk of life a good story does not make the 
news.  
 
Councillor Gildernew said she finds it difficult to agree updates to policies that do not 
highlight what has changed.  She said as previously requested could documents 
presented to committee contain the track changes.  Councillor Gildernew said that 
Council provides a good standard of service but queried the targets set out at 6.2.2 
as a receptionist working alone dealing with a person with for example additional 
needs may not be able to deal with that person and answer all calls in 20 seconds.  
She emphasised that if this is expected adequate staffing levels must be in place to 
allow staff to deliver.  
 
In response the AD: ODSP said he would follow up on requests for track changes 
and said that officers endeavour to ensure that front of house is resourced but 
acknowledged that on some occasions this is difficult to achieve. 
 
Councillor Gildernew said this should be a priority as knowing the role she was 
aware of the difficulties faced.  She asked if the trade unions had been consulted. 
 
In response the AD: ODSP said the policy had been discussed with unions and 
various teams across the council.   
 
In response to Councillor Brown the SD: ODSP said previous incidents had been 
taken into consideration when formulating the policy.   
 
Councillor Wilson said that on occasions he had telephoned, and no one had 
answered or if answered had given their name or their location.  He said his former 
workplace had recorded calls and played them back as a training exercise which had 
worked well.  Councillor Wilson said that he had previously raised a call back system 
but had been advised it was costly and asked if there was some way calls could 
return to switchboard or be diverted to another member of staff.  
 
In response the Head of ICT said they have been continuously working to improve 
calls by creating ‘Hunt’ groups and updating call routing.  He said this has brought 
improvement in answering times and they continue to work with Customer Service 
Manager and a review was scheduled for the end of April. 
 
Councillor McConnell said that sometimes when you ring and get transferred you end 
are transferred on again or alternatively maybe having to ring back so it would be 
good if action could be progressed to offset that happening.  
 
The SD:ODSP said all comments would be taken on onboard and many of the issues 
raised were continuously being developed for improvement.  She said she 
scrutinized the monthly reports to ensure that diverted calls were being answered 
and concluded that there was an excellent staff team who continuously strove 
towards improvement.  



6 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

 
The AD:ODSP said that in relation to front of house staff they were currently 
checking on teams to see if officers were available prior to transferring calls and this 
was just another practical solution in place.   
 
The Chair, Councillor Quinn said that Council staff was fantastic.  
 

Proposed by Councillor McLean 
Seconded by Councillor Wilson and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to approve the Customer Service 

Policy as set out at appendix to report. 
 
PR067/25 Member Services 
 
No issues. 
 
Matters for Information 
 
PR068/25 Minutes of Policy and Resources Committee held on 6 March 2025 

 
Members noted Minutes of Policy & Resources Committee held on 6 March 2025. 
 
PR069/25 Good Relations Working Group Update 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided details of the outworkings 
of the Corporate Good Relations Working Group that was held on Monday 3 March 
2025. 
 
PR070/25 Pensions Discretion Policy 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which advised of the annual revisions to 
employees’ pension contribution banding rates and the revised limits for additional 
pension contributions within Mid Ulster District Council’s Policy Statement in respect 
of Employer’s Discretions under (LGPS) (NI) with effect from 1 April 2025. 
 
Councillor Molloy mentioned discussion in the NI Assembly in relation to access for 
patients for those who are terminally ill and sought clarity on NILGOSC position on 
same if the employee is not 55. 
 
In response the SD: Organisational Development, Strategy and Performance said 
that should such an instance arise the person would access full pension on ill health 
retirement.  
 
Councillor Gildernew requested an amendment to Good Relations updated to amend 
Gail to Gael. 
 
Live broadcast ended at 7.37 pm.   
 
 



7 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

Local Government (NI) Act 2014 - Confidential Business 
 
 Proposed by Councillor McConnell 
 Seconded by Councillor McLean and  
 
Resolved In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local 

Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to 
withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items PR071/25 
to PR080/25. 
 
Matters for Decision  
PR071/25 Land and Property Matters 
PR072/25 Staffing Matters for Decision 
PR073/25 Employee Assistance and Cash Plan – Westfield Health – 

Increase in annual charges 
PR074/25 Mid South West (MSW) Growth Deal: Desertcreat Project 
PR075/25 Staff Matter for Consideration 

 
Matters for Information  
PR076/25 Confidential Minutes of Policy & Resources Committee 

held on 6 March 2025 
PR077/25 Staff Matters for Information 
PR078/25 Treasury Management  
PR079/25 Financial report for 11 months ended 28 Feb 2025 
PR080/25 Contracts and DAC Registers - Update 

 
P081/25  Duration of Meeting 
 
The meeting was called for 7.00 pm and ended at 7.58 pm. 
 

Chair _________________________ 
 
 
 
Date _________________________ 

  



8 - Policy & Resources Committee (03.04.25) 

 
 
Annex A – Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson 
 

Good evening and welcome to the Council’s [Policy & Resources/Environment/ 
Development] Committee in the Chamber, [Cookstown/Magherafelt] and virtually. 

I specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast. The Live 
Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we 
move into Confidential Business. I let you know before this happens.  

Just some housekeeping before we commence.  Can I remind you:- 

o If you have joined the meeting remotely, please keep your audio on mute unless 
invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking 

 

o Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet connection 
issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off 

 

o If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep 
raised until observed by an Officer or myself  

 

o Should we need to take a vote this evening I will ask each member to confirm 
whether they are for or against the proposal or abstaining  

 

o When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting 

 

o For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please 
turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item 

 

o If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being 
referred to 

 

o Lastly, I remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or 
using any means to enable anyone not present to see or hear proceedings, or 
making a simultaneous oral report of the proceedings are not permitted 

 

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda - apologies and then 
roll call of all other Members in attendance. 

 

 

 

 


